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This large center-hall brick house faces south in a grove of lo-
cust and poplar trees overlooking the Bush River about two miles
southwest of Aberdeen.

The severely plain exterior of Sophia's Dairy is in vivid con-
trast to the elegantly finished rooms inside and the spectacular
staircase in the hall. I

S

Flemish bond brickwork rises two-stories high from a lighted
stone basement. Oblong, 64' by 45', 7 bays by 2 (with 6 by 2
upstairs), the house faces south. A low stone,wing running east}
formerly a separate coachhouse now connected E6 the house,
serves as a garden workroom for the present owner. The gable
roof ridgeline runs east-west over a plain cornice and trim
eaves. About six feet in from either end wall are two chimneys
rising from back-to-back fireplaces on both floors. Unshuttered
windows have 6 lights over 6.

Indoors there are two large rooms on either side of the hall.
The wainscoted hall, 16' by 45', is amply lighted by windows on
either side of the front and back doors and by light descending
through the wide stairwell from two windows in each end of the
hall above.

The most extraordinary feature of Sophia's Dairy is the double:"
stair which extends upward on the west wall from both ends of
the hall. It continues east in one short flight, then separates
and parallels the lower flight to the second story hall. The
step ends have handsome scrolled fretwork, and the balusters are
turned. At the base of the stair the handrail terminates in a
volute, as does the lower step. Raised panel dado extends
around the room and up the stairs, as well as on the stair sof-
fit.

Fluted pilasters support Doric frieze with modillion cornice
above the parlor fireplace. Between the pilasters is a plain
partel with crossetted trim above a mantel shelf which in turn is
supported on crossetted trim around the fireplace. The dining
room on the opposite side of the hall has a similar overmantel,
but it lacks the Doric frieze. 1In its place is a dentil cor-
nice. The mantel appears to be a subsequent addition of the
Federal period. Flanking the fireplace is a glazed china cabi-
net and a door to the back hall, both flanked by fluted pilas-
ters. The aforesaid rooms have paneled dado and window seats
and jambs and crosetted trim around the windows and doors. The
rear (north) rooms have been slightly altered for use as a bed-
room and bath and a kitchen. Raised paneling on the fireplace
wall and other architectural features are undisturbed in the
kitchen.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This fineeggéigian center-hall house was built in 176899y'the
third genefation of the Hall family to own this land, Séphia
White Hall and her husband, Aquilla Hall. First cousins, their]
grandfather John Hall of Cranberry added this tract in 1718 to
earlier patents amounting to 1500 or more acres along the Bush
River first acquired in 1673. 1In 1731 when his daughter Sophia
married Col. Thomas White, lawyer and surveyor for Charles
Carroll, John Hall gave her 150 acres.

Thomas and Sophia White lived on this tract in a house on the
Bush River that is now destroyed. Col. White was born in En-
gland in 1704, came to America at the age of fifteen, and be-
came a lawyer and an expert in land titles. This was his first
land holding, but by 1777 he owned 7,772 acres. In 1745, how-
ever, his wife died, and he moved to Philadelphia, and married
two years later for the second time. A son by that marriage,
William White became the first Episcopal Bishop in America,
and a daughter:, Mary, married Robert Morris, signer of the
Declaration, and financier of the American Revolution.2

Sophia White II, the only child of the first marriage to marry
and leave descendants, married her cousin Aquilla Hall. They
built the present house in 1768. Quoting from family papers,
Preston reports that the house was built using "the hands of
five redemptionists, two of whom were masons, two carpenters,
and one a laborer, who worked with imported bricks and who,
when tgeir work was finished, received freedom as their re-
ward."

lc. Milton Wright, Our Harford Heritage, (By the Author,
1966) p. 30-31. '

2walter W. Preston, History of Harford County, (Baltimore:
Press3of the Sun Book Office, 1901) p. 205.

Walter Preston, History of Harford County, (Baltimore:
Press of the Sun Book Office, 1901.) p. 205.
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Sophia's Dairy
No. 8. Significance

Aquilla Hall, born in 1727, was sheriff of Baltimore County in
1762, and a member of the House of Delegates in 1763. 1In 1773 he
was one of seveh Commissioners of the newly formed Harford County
He owned the house at Bush in which the first court of the County
was held. His name appears first among the twenty-two signers of
The Bush Declaration, believed to be the first Declaration of
Independence in the country, signed 22 March 1775, fourteen

months prior to the signing of the world-famous document prepared
by Jefferson in Philadelphia. He was appointed Colonel of the

militia by the State Convention of 1776. He was a Lord Justice
of the Court at Bush in 1779, the last year of his life.

After several transfers inside the Hall-White-Wainwright family,
the farm was acquired by the Bata Shoe Company, originally a
Czech firm that relocated here to avoid Nazi appropriation in
1934. Bata planned a large city for their workers on this land,
but found instead that American workers expect to commute long
distances to work. However, the Dairy house was carefully re-
stored for their executive, Victor Schmidt, whose widow lives in
the house today.




